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HISTORIC LANDMARK COMMISSION 

NOVEMBER 19, 2018 

DEMOLITION AND RELOCATION PERMITS 

HDP-2018-0555 

508 LELAND STREET 

 

PROPOSAL 

Demolish a ca. 1935 house. 

 

ARCHITECTURE 

One-story, rectangular-plan, side-gabled, stuccoed frame house with a front-gabled entry 

hood; single and paired 1:1 fenestration.  This house is identical in original configuration to 

the house next door at 506 Leland Street, but has been stuccoed and had a different entry 

hood. 

RESEARCH 

The house appears to have been built in 1935 by Carl Quick, who also built the house next 

door at 506 Leland Street.  The first owners and occupants of this house were Harold and 

Delta McArthur, who lived here until around 1950.  Harold McArthur worked at Austin 

Goodyear; Delta McArthur was a telephone operator. 

The house had two other owners in the 1950s before it was occupied by Tom and Sue 

Whiteley, who rented, then purchased the property.  Tom and Sue Whiteley had lived in 

Georgetown, Texas in 1940, where he was a truck driver for a fence post company.  While 

living in this house, he was retired.  After his death in 1968, Sue Whiteley continued to live 

here until around 1975. 

STAFF COMMENTS 

The house was listed with no priority for research in the Comprehensive Cultural Resources 

Survey (1984). 

Staff has evaluated this house for designation as a historic landmark and has determined 

that the house does not meet the criteria for landmark designation as set forth in City Code: 

a. Architecture. The house is a stuccoed frame working-class cottage with little 

architectural distinction. 

b. Historical association. The house was owned by several families in the working 

class, including a mechanic, a plasterer, and a telephone operator.  There do 

not appear to be significant historical associations. 

c. Archaeology. The house was not evaluated for its potential to yield significant 

data concerning the human history or prehistory of the region. 

d. Community value. The house does not possess a unique location, physical 

characteristic, or significant feature that contributes to the character, image, 

or cultural identity of the city, the neighborhood, or a particular demographic 

group. 

e. Landscape feature. The property is not a significant natural or designed 

landscape with artistic, aesthetic, cultural, or historical value to the city. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Encourage rehabilitation and adaptive re-use, then relocation over demolition, but release 

the permit upon completion of a City of Austin Documentation Package, consisting of 

photographs of all elevations, a dimensioned sketch plan, and a narrative history, for 
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archiving at the Austin History Center.  The house does not meet the criteria for individual 

designation as a historic landmark. 
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LOCATION MAP 
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508 Leland Street 
ca. 1935 

 
 

OCCUPANCY HISTORY 
508 Leland Street 

 
City Directory Research, Austin History Center 
By City Historic Preservation Office 
July, 2012 
 
 
1992  Evelyn Porter, renter 
  No occupation listed 
 
1985-86 Jim Butler, renter 
  No occupation listed 

NOTE:  The directory indicates that Jim Butler was a new resident at this 
address. 

 
1981  L. Whitten, renter 
  No occupation listed 
 
1977  Gordon H. Crain, owner 
  No occupation listed 

NOTE:  The directory indicates that Gordon H. Crain was a new resident at this 
address. 
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1973  Sue S. Whiteley, owner 
Widow, Tom E. Whiteley 
Retired 

 
1969  Sue Whiteley, owner 
  Widow, Tom E. Whiteley 
  Retired 
 
1965  Tom E. and Sue S. Whiteley, renters 
  Retired 
 
1962  Tom E. and Sue S. Whiteley, renters 

No occupation listed 
Also listed is Nancy Whiteley, a nurse at Brackenridge Hospital 

 
1958  J.W. and Dorothy D. Herman, Jr., owners 
  Plasterer 
 
1953  Henry B. Palmer, owner 

Engineer 
 
1949  Harold and Delta McArthur, owners 

Harold: Mechanic, CB Smith Motors, Dodge and Plymouth cars, 301 W. 
5th Street. 

  Delta:  Receptionist, Secretary of State 
 
1947  Vacant 
 
1944-45 Harold J. and Delta O. McArthur (not listed as owners) 
  Harold:  Electrician 
  Delta:  Operator, Southwestern Bell Telephone Company 
 
1941  Harold J. and Delta McArthur, owners 
  Harold:  Employed by Austin Goodyear, 1st and Congress Avenue. 
  Delta:  Operator, Southwestern Bell Telephone Company 
 
1939  Harold J. and Delta McArthur, owners 
  Electrical department, Austin Goodyear, 1st and Congress Avenue 
 
1937  Harold J. and Delta McArthur, owners 
  Serviceman, Austin Goodyear, 1st Street and Congress Avenue 
 
1935  Harold J. and Delta McArthur, owners 
  Serviceman, Austin Goodyear, 1st Street and Congress Avenue. 
 
1932-33 The address is not listed in the directory. 
  NOTE:  Harold J. and Delta McArthur are not listed in the directory. 
 
 
BIOGRAPHICAL NOTES: 
Harold J. and Delta McArthur (ca. 1935 – ca. 1950) 
The 1940 U.S. Census shows Harold and Delta McArthur at this address.  Harold McArthur was 
31, had been born in Texas, and was an auto electrician.  Delta McArthur was 29, had been born 
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in Texas, and was a telephone operator.  They had no children listed living with them.  They 
owned this house, which was worth $2,250. 
 

 
Obituary of Harold McArthur 

Austin American, June 5, 1977 
 
Tom and Sue Whiteley (ca. 1960 – ca. 1975) 
Tom and Sue Whiteley appear in the 1940 U.S. Census as the renters of a house in Georgetown, 
Texas.  Thom Whiteley was 49, had been born in Texas, and was a truck driver for fence post 
company.  Sue S. Whiteley was 48, had been born in Texas, and was a laundress.  They had 3 
sons: Duane, 16; Robert E.., 13; and Frank W., 10.  All the boys had been born in Texas.  The 
family lived in rural Williamson County, Texas in 1935. 
 

 
Obituary of Tom Whiteley 

Austin American, October 28, 1968 
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Obituary of Sue Whiteley 

Austin American, July 11, 1978 
 

 
Water service permit for this address (1935) 
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Sewer connection application for this address (1935) 

 

 
Building permit to construct an addition (1967) 
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The 1935 Sanborn map shows the site of this house as vacant. 

 

 


